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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

Southern District of Florida

United States of America
V.

Case No. 18-08-SMM

Chadton Edward La-chase,

FILED t)y 
.C.

FE2 2 L 2218
1

STEVEN M. LARIMORFc
l-Eax u s. Dls'c c'lL

s.D. oF FLJ. - F'rt plERcE

Delendantls)

CRIM INALCOM PLY T

1, the complsinRt in this case, stnl- that the following is mze to tbe best of my knowlege and belief.

On or about the datets) of Januarv 22 - 29, 2018 in the cotmty of St. Lucie in the

Southern District of Fbrida . the defendxntts) violated:

C#e Section fr zlae Description

18 U.S.C. j 875(c) Interstate transmission of threat to injure the pex n of another.

This rtriminnl complazt is based on these facts'.

-SEE AU ACHED AFFIDAVIT-

W Continued on tbe attacbed sbeet.

<

Complainant '.ç ztgnature

Mark Gibbons. Special M ent. FBl
Printed name and f/le

Swom to before me aqd siN ed in my presence.

' 
. .aq.zr ,

Date: vA, Q.-. f

City and state: Fort pierœ . Florida

Judge '& yfgnlhlre

Shanlek M. Mavnard, U.S. Maqistrate Judqe
M nted aaple and f//le
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AFFIDAW T

1, M ark Gibbons, being duly swom , do state and attest as follows:

I am a Special Agent (SA) with the Federal Bureau of hvestigation (FBI), and I

have been so employed since M arch 2005. I am currently assiR ed to M inm i division, Fort Pierce

Resident Agency. l have prim arily been assir ed to investigations dealing with violent crimes,

computer crimes, and both dom estic and international terrorism . Bmsed on my experience ms a

federal 1aw enforcement om cer, l have conducted invesugations of, and have been ins% cted in

invesdgative techniques concem ing terrorism  and interstate threats to harm others, activities thnt

aze criminal offenses in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 875(c).

2. TMs Afsdavit is based upon m y own personal knowledge of the facts and

circllm stances surrolmding the investigation and information provided to me by other 1aw

enforcem ent om cersy' and/or other wimesses. This Am davit does not purport to contain a11 the

inform ation known to me about this case, but addresses only that information necessary to support

a finding of probable cause for the issllance of a Criminal Complaint against Charlton Edward LA-

CHASE, for kansmitting in interstate or foreir  commerce any comm lmication containing any

threat to kidnap any person or any threat to hjure the person of another in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 875(c).

3. On January 26, 2018, the M ilmi Division of the FBI received a tip on the Public

Access Line (PM ) Unit from an employee of the United States Comst Guard. The employee stated

he called tp report information he received from a subordinate at work. The subordinate's wife

works with cooperating witness #1, (CW#1), who is a relative of LA-CHASE. 'l'he information

provided to the PAL Unit wms that LA-CHASE lives with his m other due to his deaf and mental

illness issues. LA-CHA SE hn-q forbidden CW #1 from visiting the residence of LA-CHASE and
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his mother and llas threatened to bthead CW #1 and his/her children. LA-CHASE has statei EEl

want to be the frst deaf person to create American casualties in the name of ISIS.''

4. On January 29, 2018, FBI SA Jex ey Serna interviewed CW #1. During the

inteM ew, CW #1 advised that in the past week his/her relative, LA-CHASE, had m ade threats via

text message to hsrm people in the name of ISIS, and that he wanted to be the frst deaf person to

kill on the behalf of ISIS. CW #1 provided printed copies of the text messages he/she received from

LA-CHASE, which I have reviewed. During one text message, LA-CHASE stated, STuck you. I

prepare to get a rent mzck flatbed. llit/kill people while festive event by Isis terromism (sic)

p-oup told me. I been plnnning to be the frst deaf ISIS. KILL PEOPLE LIKE NYC. DR GIJY

HIT / killed people. Thimk you for not helping m e. Fuck you.'' Another message stated, çTirst

deaf terroism (sic) history in USA. Like I-as Vegas Man shoot over 500. Omar marten shooter

over 100 lgbt. Fuck you.'' A third m essage stated, %çlsis want m ake a11 deaf community and

hearing people pay attention any news about m e.'' A message directed at CW #1 stated, %çYou mess

up m y life in Jtme 2016. Plus dec 2016. Fuck. U BE DEAD SOON SOON DEAD''. n ese text

messages were sent by LA-CHASE while kaveling internationally in Costa Rica to CW #1 who is

located in Fort Pierce, Florida.

CW  #1 provided an image of LA-CHASE'S Facebook page and m icles discussing

the ISIS recrui% ent of deaf fighters via online videos. Further review of LA-CHASE'S Facebook

page revealed an undated news clip featalring an ISIS recnzi% ent video featured in a 2015

Newsweek article and 2015 online Deaf You Video blog post. 'Ihis video though conducted in

sign language is posted with a third party commentary in English describing the content and

message. The com mentary provided conlrmK ISIS'S attempts to recm it individuals from the deaf

community. A second video is the supposed abuse of a deaf Brazilian ISIS Rghter by his deaf
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Kurdish army captors. FBI kanslation states that the si>  language references shooting and

beheading deaf persons. A thigd video shows LA-CHASE at the Islamic Center of Fort Pierce on

Jtme l 2, 2016 posting a message in sign language about Omar M ateen's attack on the Pulse

Nightclub. Additional videos show m embers of the deaf community condem ning LA-CHASE for

being an ISIS supporter.

LA-CIIASE has a history of violence as docum ented by incident reports and

investigation reports dating back to 2010 from St. Jolm 's County FL Sheriœ s Office, St. Lucie

County Sheriffs Omce, and Indian River County Sàeriff's Offce. These incidents include

accusations of rape, assault and battery, assault - touch or strike, and BakerN arcbm an Act.

CW #1 advised the FBI that LA-CIIASE is currently in Costa Rica and is supposed

to travel back to Florida on Sunday, February 4, 2018. CW #1 also stated that LA-CIIASE may

have attempted to purchase a fireann and he was denied tlw sale due to the backp otmd check and

his mental illness. FBl investigaion reveals LA-CHASE was denied a flrearm purchase in M ay

of 2017, at Valuepawn in Ft. Pierce, FL.

8. The text m essages were sent from telephone number 772-979-4131. CW  //1

advised the nnmber is utilized by LA-CHASE. Open source data base checks show telephone

nllmber 772-979-4131 is mssociated with LA-CHASE through his Facebook account. LA-CIIASE

also utilized 772-979-4131 as contact information for the title chrmge on a vehicle he purch%ed.

Bmsed on information u own to 1aw enforcement, I believe LA-CIIASE is the user of telephone

number 772-979-4131.

9. CW #1 stated in the interview with SA Sern;t that LA-CHASE wms expelled from

Gallaudet University in W asltington, D.C. in approxim ately 2015. CW #1 stated LA-CHASE

responded to a campus wide email about an active shooter and sent an em ail stating he was in fact
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* *

the shooter.

10. Bmsed on the foregoing facts, I subm it that probable cause exists to believe that

Charlton Edward LACHASE, did tmnsmit in interstate or foreir  commerce a commllnication

containing a threat to injure the person of another in violation of Title l 8, United States Code,

Section 875(c).

*x

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

% ark Gib ns
Special Agent

Federal Bureau of Investigation

swom  to m e and subschbed before me
this Qvay of Febnmry, 20l 8
at Fo= Pierce, Florida.

'rhe Honorable ShY ek M . ynard
United States M agistrate Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No: 18-B8-SM M

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

CHARLTON EDW ARD LA-CHASE.

Defendant.
/

Did this matter ori/nate 9om a matter pending in the Miami Omce of the Urlited States
Attomey's Ofsce prior to July 20, 2008?

Yes No

l Did this matter originate 9om a matter pending in the Northem Regon of the United States
Attomey's Offce (West Palm Beach Ooce) only prior to December 18, 20112

Yes

3. Did tltis matter originate from a matter pentling in the Fort Pierce Offce of the Unitedstates
Attom ey's Office prior to August 8, 2014?

Yes No

>-e xo

Respectfully submitted,

BENJAM DQ G.GREEN BERG
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

By:

Stephe Carlton

Admin. No. A550001 1
Assistant United States Attom ey

Stephen.carlton@usdoj.gov
United States Attorney's Om ce

101 South US Highway 1, Suite 3100
Fort Pierce, FL 34950
Telephone: 772-466-0899

Facsimile: 772-466-1020
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